TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

Annual Report 2019




AN TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED ‘| l

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

CONTENTS

PAGE NO.

COMPANY INFORMATION

3

VISION & MISSION

4

NOTICE OF MEETING

5-7

CHAIRPERSON’S REVIEW

8

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

9-16

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

17-19

KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT.

20

21-22

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

23-29

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION-

30

STATEMENT PROFIT OR LOSS

31

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

32

33

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

34

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35-61

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDINGS

62

CATEGORIES OF SHARE HOLDING

63

PROXY FORMS

65




JamaPunji

Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan’s
Landmark Initiative for Investor Education

PROTECY YOURSELF

Jama
9 Punji

Bl 5 i rans 5 4 pln et

www.jamapunji.pk

£ v
jamapunji.pk @jamapunji_pk




AN TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

al

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

COMPANY INFORMATION

Board of Directors

Audit Committee

HR and Remuneration
Committee

Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary

Auditors

Bankers

Share Registrar

Registered Office & Mills

Mrs. Nazma Amer
Mr. Aizad Amer
Mrs. Zareen Akhtar
Mr. Anns Amer
Ms. Yusra Amer
Mr. Abdul Rauf
Sved Khalid Ali

Mr. Abdul Rauf
Ms. Yusra Amer
Sved Khalid Ali

Syed Khalid Ali
Mr. Abdul Rauf
Mr. Anns Amer

Mr. Muhammad Sagib Ehsan

Mr. Tahir Shahzad

Riaz Ahmad and Company
Chartered Accountants

Chairperson

Chief Executive Officer
Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Chairman
Member
Member

Chairman
Member
Member

560-F, Raja Road, Gulistan Colony,

Faisalabad

Bank Al Habib Limited

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited
Al-Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited

Habib Bank Limited
Meezan Bank Limited
National Bank of Pakistan

Corplink (Private) Limited

Wings Arcade, 1-K. Commercial. Model Town. Lahore

35 Kilometer, Sheikhupura Road,

Tehsil Jaranwala, Faisalabad




AN TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

VISION STATEMENT

To be a customer oriented Company having wide and diversified customer base with a
team of professionals working together to add value to all the stakeholders and

contributing to society to help build a strong and progressive Pakistan.

MISSION STATEMENT

The mission of AN Textile Mills Limited is, recognition of its project as the most modern
units, and to produce fine quality of product with the understanding of customer
behavior. Build the Company on sound financial footings, increase earnings for
handsome distribution of dividend to its shareholders, and to earn foreign exchange for

the country.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 38™ Annual General Meeting of the members of AN Textile
Mills Limited (“the Company”) will be held on Monday, October 28, 2019 at 10:00 A.M.
at its registered office situated at 35 K.M. Sheikhupura Road, Faisalabad to transact the
following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To confirm the minutes of last Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on March 22, 2019.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the year
ended June 30, 2019 together with the Chairperson’s review, Directors’ and Auditors’ reports

thereon.

3. To approve and declare final cash dividend of Rupees 0.4 per share i.e. 4% as recommended by
the Board of Directors of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2019.

4. To appoint the auditors of the Company for the next financial year and to fix their
remuneration. The retiring auditors M/s Riaz Ahmad and Company, Chartered Accountants,

being eligible, have offered themselves for re-appointment.

5. To transact any other business that may be brought forward with the permission of the Chair.

By order of the Board
W
Dated: October 07, 2019 Tahir Shahzad
Faisalabad (Company Secretary)

NOTES:

1. The share transfer books of the Company shall remain closed from October 21, 2019 to
October 28, 2019 (both days inclusive). Transfers received in order at Registered Office of the
Company or our Share Registrar, M/s Corplink (Private) Limited, Wings Arcade, 1-K,
Commercial, Model Town, Lahore by the close of business on October 19, 2019 will be
considered in time.

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at this general meeting is entitled to appoint another
member as proxy. Proxies must be received in order to effective at the registered office of the
Company not less than 48 hours before the time for the meeting.

3. Any individual Beneficial Owner of CDC, entitled to attend and vote at this meeting, must
bring his / her original CNIC or Passport to prove his / her identity and in case of Proxy must
enclose an attested copy of his / her CNIC or Passport. Representatives of corporate members
should bring the usual documents required for such purpose.

e — 5 ________________________________________________________|
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Shareholders are requested to notify the change in their addresses if any, immediately.
Moreover, the members who have not yet submitted their Computerized National Identity
Cards to the Company are requested to send at their earliest.

Under the provisions of section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, it is mandatory for a listed
Company to pay cash dividend to its shareholders only through electronic mode directly into bank
account designated by the entitled shareholders. In order to receive dividends directly into their
bank accounts, shareholders are requested to fill in dividend mandate form available on Companies
website: www.antextile.com.pk and send it duly signed along with a copy of CNIC to the Share
Registrar of the Company M/s Corplink (Private) Limited, Wings Arcade, 1-K, Commercial,
Model Town, Lahore during working hours in case of physical shares. In case shares are held
in CDC then dividend mandate form must be submitted directly to shareholders’ broker
participant/CDC account services.

In case of non-submission of an IBAN, the Company will withhold the payment of dividends under
Companies (Distribution of Dividends) Regulations, 2017.

Shareholders of the Company are hereby informed that as per the record, there are some
unclaimed/uncollected/ unpaid dividends and shares. Shareholders who could not collect their
dividends/shares are advised to contact our Shares Registrars to collect enquire about their
unclaimed dividend or shares, if any. In compliance with section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017,
after having completed the stipulated procedure, of three years or more from the date due and
payable, shall be deposited to the credit of Federal Government in case of unclaimed dividend and
in case of share, shall be delivered to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

Government of Pakistan through Finance Act, 2019, has made certain amendments in withholding
tax provisions by substituting the definition of “Filers” with “Active Taxpayer List” (ATL),
whereby the Company is required to collect tax on dividend under section 150 of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 from the person not appearing in the ATL at the rates specified in the Ordinance
as increased by 100%. These tax rates are as under:

(a) For persons appearing in ATL 15% (b) For persons not appearing in ATL 30%

Sharcholders who are filers, are advised to make sure that their names are entered into latest
ATL provided on the website of Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) at the time of dividend
payment, otherwise they shall be treated as person not appearing in ATL and tax on their cash
dividends will deducted at the rate of 30% instead of 15%.

For sharcholders holding their shares jointly as per the clarification issued by the FBR,
withholding tax will be determined separately as per status of their names appearing in the
ATL for principal shareholder as well as joint-holder(s) based on their shareholding
proportions. Therefore, all sharcholders who hold shares jointly are required to provide
shareholding proportions of principal shareholder and joint shareholder(s) in respect of shares
held by them to our Share Registrar.
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9. SECP through its notification SRO 787(1)/2014 dated September 8, 2014 has allowed the
circulation of audited financial statements along with the notice of Annual General Meeting
electronically to the shareholders of the Company through email. Therefore, shareholders who
wish to receive the soft copy of Annual Report are requested to send their e-mail addresses.
The consent form for electronic transmission can be downloaded from the Company’s website.
The Company shall however, continue to provide hard copy of the audited financial statements
to its shareholders, on request free of cost, within seven days of receipt of such request.

10. In compliance with SECP notification No. 634(1)/2014 dated July 10, 2014, the audited financial
statements and reports of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2019 are being placed on the
Company’s website: www.antextile.com.pk for information and review of the shareholders.

1. Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 the shareholders residing in a city and
holding at least 10% of the total paid up share capital may demand the Company to provide the
facility of video-link for participating in the AGM. The demand for video-link facility shall be
received by the Share Registrar at the address given here in above at least seven days prior to the
date of the meeting on the Standard Form available on the Company’s website:
www.antextile.com.pk
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CHAIRPERSON'S REVIEW
For the year ended June 30, 2019

The Board of Directors of AN Textile Mills Limited (“the Company”™) is performing its duties in
accordance with law and in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders as required
under the Code of Corporate Governance, an annual evaluation of the Board of Directors of the
Company is carried out. The purpose of this evaluation is to ensure that the Board’s overall
performance and effectiveness is measured and benchmarked against expectations in the context
of objectives set for the Company.

For the financial year ended June 30, 2019, the Board’s overall performance and effectiveness
has been assessed as satisfactory. This is based on an evaluation of integral components,
including vision, mission and values; engagement in strategic planning; formulation of policies;
monitoring the organization’s business activities; monitor financial resource management;
effective fiscal oversight; equitable treatment of all employees and efficiency in carrying out the
Board’s business.

AN Textile Mills Limited complies with all the requirements set out in the Law with respect to
the composition, procedures and meetings of the Board of Directors and its committees.
Necessary Board agenda and related supporting documents were duly made available to the
board in sufficient time prior to the board and its committees’ meetings. The Board has exercised
all its powers in accordance with relevant laws and regulation and the non-executive and
independent directors are equally involved in important decisions of the Board.

Nea st
Mrs"Nazma Amer
Chairperson
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE SHARE HOLDERS

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present their 38™

Annual Report along with audited

Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended June 30, 2019, along with
Auditors’ Report thereon and other required information prescribed under the Code of Corporate
Governance. The comparative financial results of the Company are reproduced hereunder:

FINANCIAL RESULTS:
2019 2018
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

REVENUE 1,885,310 1,598,473
COST OF SALES (1,747,080) (1,537,855)
GROSS PROFIT 138,230 60,618
DISTRIBUTION COST (2,111} (2,945)
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (42,969) (35.376)
OTHER EXPENSES (3,239) (3,526)
OTHER INCOME 18,330 16,250
FINANCE COST (46,714) (31.604)
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 61,527 3417
TAXATION (42,507) (11,020)
PROFIT / (LOSS) AFTER TAXATION 19,020 (7.603)
EARNINGS / (LOSS) PER SHARE - BASIC

AND DILUTED (RUPEES) 1.97 (0.79)

REVIEW OF OPERATING RESULTS

As compared to financial year 2018, in current financial year revenue grew by 17.94% from
Rupees 1,598.473 million to 1,885.310 million while cost of sales increased by 13.6% from
1,537.855 million to 1,747.080 million. The Company earned gross profit of Rupees 138.230
million as compared to previous year’s gross profit of Rupees 60.617 million which is 128.03%
more than the last year. Moreover, the Company earned profit after taxation of Rupees 19.020
million as compared to loss after taxation of Rupees 7.603 million in corresponding year. By the
Grace of Almighty Allah the Company able to achieve these results due to shifting of operations
of the Company from coarse count to fine count, installation of Compact Spinning system on all
ring frames of the Company, Balancing, Modernization and Replacement (BMR) of plant and
machinery and related equipment of the Company and due to the stern efforts made by its

management in last couple of years.
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FUTURE OUTLOOK

Pakistan Textile industry has been under pressure to compete internationally due to high cost of
doing business. The Government support in the form of availability of energy at reduced prices,
and release of funds against tax refunds is imperative for industry to compete internationally.
Moreover, in next financial year the management of your Company has planned to further
enhance its production capacity and every possible effort will be made by its management to
curtail and keep its expenses to a minimum level to earn maximum profitability so that the
shareholders can get returns on their investments.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The earnings per share for the year ended June 30, 2019 is Rupees 1.97 as compared to loss per
share of Rupees 0.79 for last year ended on June 30, 2018.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors of your Company proposed a cash dividend for the year ended 30 June
2019 of Rupees 0.4 per share i.e. 4% to all shareholders.

OUTSTANDING STATUTORY PAYMENTS
All outstanding payments are nominal and of routine nature.
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

Pattern of shareholding as on June 30, 2019 is annexed. No trade in the shares of the company
was carried out during the year by its Directors, CEO, CFO and Company Secretary and their
spouses and minor children except for the sales/purchase of shares as mentioned on page no. 63.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All transactions with related parties are carried out at arm’s length. The prices are determined in
accordance with comparable un-controlled price method. The Company has complied with best
practices on transfer pricing as contained in listing regulations of the Stock Exchanges of
Pakistan.

AUDITORS

The auditors M/s Riaz Ahmad & Company, Chartered Accountants retired and being eligible for
re-appointment, the Board of Directors has been suggested by the Audit Committee, the re-
appointment of M/s Riaz Ahmad & Company, Chartered Accountants, as auditors of your
company for the next financial year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The statement of compliance of best practices of Code of Corporate Governance is annexed.

CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK:

In compliance to listing regulations of stock exchanges and as required under the Companies
Act, 2017, your Directors are pleased to state as under:

1.

The financial statements prepared by the Management of your Company present fairly its
state of affairs, the results of its operations, cash flow and changes in equity.

Proper books of accounts of the Company have been maintained.

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of these
financial statements and accounting estimates, which are based on reasonable and prudent
judgment.

International Financial Reporting Standards and International Accounting Standards, as
applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of financial statements. The system
of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.

. The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and

monitored.
There is no doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as
detailed in the listing regulations.

Key operating financial data of last six years in summarized form 1s annexed.

The Company operates un-funded gratuity scheme for its employees as reflected in these
financial statements.

NO. OF BOARD AND OTHER COMMITTEES MEETINGS HELD:

Sr. | Name Board Of Audit Committee HR &

# Directors Meeting Remuneration

Meeting Committee
Meeting

1 | Mrs. Nazma Amer 4/4 - -

2 | Mr. Aizad Amer 3/4 - -

3 | Mr. Anns Amer 4/4 - 1/1

4 | Mrs. Zareen Akhtar 4/4 - -

5 | Mr. Abdul Rauf 4/4 4/4 1/1

6 | Ms. Yusra Amer 4/4 4/4 -

7 | Syed Khalid Ali 4/4 4/4 1/1
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Leave of absence was granted to the directors who could not attend some of the Board and
Committee meetings.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

The Board places on record its appreciation for the cooperation, commitment and hard work

extended to the Company by the customers, suppliers, bankers and all the employees of the
Company.

On behalf o ard

FAISALABAD. (Aizad Amer)
Dated: October 05, 2019 Chief Executive Officer
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2017

Name of Company: AN Textile Mills Limited
Year Ending: 30 June 2019

The company has complied with the requirement of the Regulations in the following manner:
1. The total number of Directors are seven as per the following:

a. Male: Four
b. Female: Three

2. The composition of the Board of Directors (“the Board”) is as follows:

a) Independent Directors

Mr. Abdul Rauf
Syed Khalid Ali

b) Other Non-executive Directors

Mrs. Nazma Amer
Mrs. Zareen Akhtar
Ms. Yusra Amer

c) Executive Directors

Mr. Aizad Amer
Mr. Anns Amer

3. The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a Director of more than five
listed companies, including this company.

4. The Company has prepared a ‘Code of Conduct’ and has ensured that appropriate steps have
been taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and
procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and
significant policies of the Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies
along with the dates on which they were approved or amended has been maintained.

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on material transactions,
including appointment and determination of remuneration and terms and conditions of

employment of the Chief Executive Officer and other non-executive directors, have been
taken by the Board.
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10.

) 18

12.

14.

13,

All the meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairperson and, in her absence, by
a Director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board met at least once in each quarter
during the year ended 30 June 2019. Written notices of the Board meetings, along with
agenda and working papers, were circulated at least seven days before the meetings. The
minutes of the meetings were appropriately recorded and circulated.

The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in
accordance with the act and these Regulations.

No training program for the directors of the Company was arranged during the year as
required by Rule 20 of the Regulations. However, we shall comply this requirement in next
financial year.

The Board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal
Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied
with relevant requirements of the Regulations.

CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the Board.

The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee

Mr. Abdul Rauf (Chairman)
Ms. Yusra Amer (Member)
Syed Khalid Ali (Member)

b) HR and Remuneration Committee

Syed Khalid Ali (Chairman)
Mr. Abdul Rauf (Member)
Mr. Anns Amer (Member)

. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and

advised to the committee for compliance.
The frequency of meetings of the aforesaid committees were as per followings:

a) Audit Committee: Four meetings during the financial year ended 30 June 2019
b) HR and Remuneration Committee: One meeting during the financial year ended 30 June
2019

The Board has set up an effective internal audit function which comprises the persons who
are considered suitably qualificd and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the
policies and procedures of the Company.
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16. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a
satisfactory rating under the quality control review programme of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that
they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of
the Company and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with International
Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP.

I7. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to
provide other services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other
regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC
guidelines in this regard.

I8, We confirm that all other requirements of the regulations have been complied with.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
NQ%W‘A U«—M '

NAZMA AMER
Chairperson
Dated: October 05, 2019
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KEY OPERATING & FINANCIAL DATA
FOR LAST SIX YEARS

PARTICULARS

FINANCIAL POSITION

Paid up capital

Share premium

Fixed assets at cost/ revalued amount
Accumulated depredation

Current assets

Current liabiliges

INCOME

Revere
Orther income
Pre tax profit / (loss)

Taxaton

STATISTICS AND RATIOS

Pre tax profit / (loss) to sales %«

Pre tax profit / (loss) to capital %
Current tatio

Paid up value per share (Rs)

Earnines/ (Loss) after tax per share (Rs)
Cash dividend %

Break up value per share (Rs))

96,600
17250
1,481,947
653,241
657,727
740,677

1,885,310
18330
61,527
(42507)

3.26
3.69
1:089
10.00
197
4.00
80.08

2018

R

96,600
17250
1,431,460
613,088
418,114
556,464

1,598473
16250
3417
(11,020)

354
1:0.75
10,00
0.79)

77.36

2017

96,600
17250
1,420,748
583,766
340,281

476,717

1,102,932
39,381
(12899)
(46.216)

(11.70)
(133.54)
1071
10.00
(18.14)

77.88

2016 2015 2014

«(Rupees in Thousand)..couemensasmumsmss

96,600 96,600 96,600
17250 17,250 17250
1485900 1393255 1,833,702
62354 612542 917942
570574 636257 1,307,361

~.]

37370 753,606 1,206,483

1466267 1358792 4150048
2416 8,500 12001
41178 (110479 31226

39293 37,183 23070
9.63) ®.12) 0.75
(146.15) (11429 3232
1:0.79 1:0.84 1092
10.00 10.00 10,00

(10.55) (7.59) 0.84

56.60 33.80 59.30

2 () |
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT

To the members of AN Textile Mills Limited (formerly Ishaq Textile Mills Limited)

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance Contained in Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code
of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of
Directors of AN Textile Mills Limited {formerly Ishaq Textile Mills Limited} (the Company)
for the year ended 30 June 2019 in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 40 of
the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of
the Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects
the status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if
it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations.
A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various
documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an
understanding of the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit
and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the
Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an
opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance
procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their
review and approval, its related party transactions and also ensure compliance with the
requirements of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and have
ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party
transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We
have not carried out procedures to assess and determine the Company’s process for
identification of related parties and that whether the related party transactions were
undertaken at arm’s length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all
material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the
Company for the vear ended 30 June 2019.
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Further, we highlight below instance of non-compliance with the requirements of the
Regulations as reflected in the paragraph reference where it is stated in the Statement of

Compliance:
Paragraph Description
Reference
9 The Company has not made any arrangement to carry out orientation

courses for their directors.

Lo phnnd L &,
R MAD & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

Faisalabad
Date: October 05, 2019.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of AN Textile Mills Limited (formerly Ishaq Textile Mills Limited)
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of AN Textile Mills Limited {formerly Ishaq
Textile Mills Limited} (the Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at
30 June 2019, and the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income,
the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and
explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes
of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows
together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the
state of the Company’s affairs as at 30 June 2019 and of the profit, other comprehensive
income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board
for Accountants” Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Following are the key audit matters:

Sr. | Key audit matters How the matters were addressed in our
No. audit
1. | Inventory existence and

valuation

Inventories as at 30 June 2019
amounting to Rupees 465.935 million
represented a material position in the
statement of financial position, break
up of which is as follows:

- Stores, spare parts and
loose tools of Rupees
42.702 million

- Stock in trade of Rupees
423.233 million

The business is characterized by high
volume serial production and the
valuation and existence  of
inventories are significant to the
business. Therefore, considered as
one of the key audit matters.

Inventories are stated at lower of
cost and net realizable value. Cost is
determined as per accounting policy
disclosed in Note 2.7 to the financial
statements.

At year end, the valuation of
inventories is reviewed by
management and the cost of
inventories is reduced where it is
forecasted to be sold below cost.

Usable stores, spare parts and loose
tools are valued at moving average
cost, raw materials are valued at

Our procedures over existence and valuation of
inventories included, but were not limited to:

e To test the quantity of inventories at all
locations, we assessed the corresponding
inventory observation instructions and
participated in inventory counts on sites.
Based on samples, we performed test
counts and compared the quantities
counted by us with the results of the
counts of the management.

e For a sample of inventory items, re-
performed the weighted average cost
calculation and compared the weighted
average cost appearing on valuation
sheets.

o We tested that the ageing report used by
management correctly aged inventory
items by agreeing a sample of aged
inventory items to the last recorded
invoice.

e On a sample basis, we tested the net
realizable value of inventory items to
recent selling prices and re-performed the
calculation of the inventory write down, if
any.

e In the context of our testing of the
calculation, we analyzed individual cost
components and traced them back to the
corresponding underlying documents.

e We also made inquiries from
management, including those outside of
the finance function, and considered the

pls
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| valuation

Sr. | Key audit matters How the matters were addressed in our
No. audit
1. | Inventory existence and

weighted average cost whereas,
costing of work-in-process and
finished goods is considered to carry
more significant risk as the cost of
material, labor and manufacturing
overheads is allocated on the basis of
complex formulas and involves
management judgment.

The determination of whether
inventories will be realized for a value
less than cost requires management
to exercise judgment and apply
assumptions. Management
undertakes the following procedures
for determining the level of write
down required:

» Use inventory ageing reports
together with historical trends
to estimate the likely future
salability of slow moving and
older inventory items.

» Perform a line-by-line analysis
of remaining inventories to
ensure it is stated at the lower
of cost and net realizable value
and a specific write down is
recognized, if required.

For further information on
inventories, refer to the following:

Summary of significant
accounting policies,
Inventories (Note 2.7 to
the financial statements).

Stores, spare parts and
loose tools (Note 16) and
Stock in trade (Note 17)
to the financial

results of our testing above to determine
whether any specific write downs were
required.

We also assessed the adequacy of the
disclosures made in respect of the
accounting policies and related notes to the
financial statements.

i
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Sr. | Key audit matters How the matters were addressed in our
No. audit
2. |Revenuerecognition Our procedures included, but were not limited

The Company recognized net
revenue of Rupees 1,885.310 million
for the year ended 30 June 2019.

We identified recognition of revenue
as a key audit matter because
revenue is one of the Kkey
performance indicators of the
Company and gives rise to an
inherent risk that revenue could be
subject to misstatement to meet
expectations or targets.

For further information, refer to the
following:

Summary of significant
accounting policies,
Revenue recognition (Note
2.18 to the financial
statements).

Revenue (Note 24 to
the financial statements).

to:

 We obtained an understanding of the
process relating to recognition of
revenue and testing the design,
implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls
over recording of revenue;

e We compared a sample of revenue
transactions recorded during the year
with sales orders, sales invoices,
delivery documents and other relevant
underlying documents;

o We compared a sample of revenue
transactions recorded around the year-
end with the sales orders, sales invoices,
delivery documents and other relevant
underlying documentation to assess if
the related revenue was recorded in the
appropriate accounting period;

e We assessed whether the accounting
policies for revenue recognition
complies with the requirements of IFRS
15 'Revenue from Contracts with
Customers';

o We compared the detail of a sample of
journal entries posted to revenue
accounts during the year, which met
certain specific risk-based criteria, with
the relevant underlying documentation.

We also considered the appropriateness of
disclosures in the financial statements.

2 | 1 —
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in
Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

® Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
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or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows
together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

C) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were
for the purpose of the Company’s business; and

d) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of
1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Liagat Ali
Panwar.

/Lt:ﬁ ﬁnﬂ-——/FG.

RIAZ AHMAD & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
Faisalabad

Date: October 05, 2019.
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AN TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

(formerly Ishaq Textile Mills Limited)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

NOTE 2019 2018
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

REVENUE 24 1,885,310 1,598,473
COST OF SALES 25 (1,747,080) (1,537,855)
GROSS PROFIT 138,230 60,618
DISTRIBUTION COST 26 (2,111) (2,945)
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 27 (42,969) (35,376)
OTHER EXPENSES 28 (3,239) (3,526)
OTHER INCOME 29 18,330 16,250
FINANCE COST 30 (46,714) (31,604)
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 61,527 3,417
TAXATION 31 (42,507) (11,020)
PROFIT / (LOSS) AFTER TAXATION 19,020 (7,603)

EARNINGS / (LOSS) PER SHARE - BASIC
AND DILUTED (RUPEES) 32 1.97 (0.79)

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

J b' & v
IZAD AMER ANNS AMER Muhamimad Saqib Ehsan
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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AN TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

(formerly Ishaq Textile Mills Limited)
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

2019 2018
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
PROFIT / (LOSS) AFTER TAXATION 19,020 (7,603)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Remeasurements of staff retirement gratuity 380 1,322
Deferred income tax related to remeasurements (110) (383)
270 939
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 19,869 -
Related deferred tax liability (5,762) =
14,107 -
14,377 939
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss - -
Other comprehensive income for the year - net of deferred income tax 14,377 939
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 33,397 (6,664)
The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
/
J b' & v
IZAD AMER ANNS AMER Muhamimad Saqib Ehsan
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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AN TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

(formerly Ishaq Textile Mills Limited)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

NOTE 2019 2018

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash (used in) / generated from operations 33 (9,254) 12,918
Finance cost paid (39,852) (29,435)
Income tax paid (21,646) (16,968)
Staff retirement gratuity paid (3,296) (3,753)
Dividend paid 4) (2)
Net increase in long term deposits and prepayments (21) (13)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES (74,073) (37,253)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment (19,149) (37,969)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 138 1,594
Profit on long term investments received 121 230
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (18,890) (36,145)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Short term borrowings - net | 138.251 | | 62,433 |
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 138,251 62,433
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 45,288 (10,965)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 4,764 15,729
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
END OF THE YEAR (NOTE 23) 50,052 4,764

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

/

J b' & v
IZAD AMER ANNS AMER Muhamimad Saqib Ehsan
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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AN TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

(formerly Ishaq Textile Mills Limited)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

1. THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS
AN Textile Mills Limited {formerly Ishaq Textile Mills Limited} (the Company) is a public limited company incorporated in Pakistan under the
Companies Act, 1913 (Now Companies Act, 2017) and its share are guoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. Its registered office and

mills premises are situated at 35 Kilometers Sheikhupura Road, Faisalabad. The principal activity of the Company is manufacturing, sale and
trading of yarn and doth. The Company has changed its name from Ishag Textile Mills Limited to AN Textile Mills Limited on 12 April 2019.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated:

2.1 Basis of preparation
a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The
accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of :

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the
Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017,
Where provisions of and directives issued under the Com panies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRSs, the provisions of and directives issued under
the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

b)  Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for the recognition of staff retirement gratuity at
present value and certain operating fixed assets and investment properties which are carried at thelr fair value.

c) Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires the management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Com pany's accounting policies. Estimates
and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience, including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the drcumstances. The areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company's financial
statements or where judgments were exercised in application of accounting policies are as follows:

Useful lives, patterns of economic benefits and impairments

The estimates for revalued amounts, of different classes of property, plant and equipment, are based on valugtion performed by external
professional valuer and recommendation of technical teams of the Company. The said recommendations also include estimates with respect
to residual values and depreciable lives. Further, the Company reviews the value of the assets for possible impairment on an annual basis.
Estimates with respedt to residual values and useful lives and pattern of flow of economic benefits are based on the analysis of the

management of the Company. Any change in the estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of
property, plant and eguipment with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment.

Inventories
Net realizable value of inventories is determined with reference to currently prevailing selling prices less estimated expenditure to make sales.
Income tax

In making the estimates for income tax currently payable by the Company, the management takes into account the current income tax law
and the dedsions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.

Allowance for expected credit losses

The allowance for expected credit losses assessment requires a degree of estimation and judgement. It is based on the lifetime expected
credit loss, based on the Company's experience of actual aedit loss in past years.

Revenue from contracts with customers involving sale of goods

When recognizing revenue in relation to the sale of goods to customers, the key performance obligation of the Company is considered to be
the point of delivery of the goods to the customer, as this is deemed to be the time that the customer obtains control of the promised goads
and therefore the benefits of unimpeded access.

Staff retirement gratuity

Certain actuarial assumptions have been adopted as disdosed in Note 8 to the financial statements for determination of present value of staff
retirement gratuity, Any change in these assumptions in future years might affect the current and remeasurement gains and losses in those
years.
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d) Standards, interpretation and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in current year
and are relevant to the Company

Following standards, interpretation and amendments to published approved accounting stendards are mandatory for the Company's
accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2018:

» [FRS 9 'Financial [nstruments’

» [FRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’

» [FRS 15 (Amendments), ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers'

» [AS 40 (Amendments), 'Investment Property'

» [FRIC 22 ‘Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration’
= Annual Improvements to [FRSs: 2014 — 2016 Cyde

The Company had to change its accounting policies and make certain adjustments without restating prior year results following the adoption
of IFRS 9. These are disdosed in Note 2.13. Most of the other amendments listed above except for IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 (as disclosed in Note
2.14) did not have any impact on the amounts recognized in prior periods and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future
periods.

e) Standards, interpretation and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet effective but
relevant to the Company

Following standards, interpretation and amendments to existing standards have been published and are mandatory for the Company’s
accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2019 or later periods:

[FRS 16 'Lease’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 20159). IFRS 16 specifies how an entity will recognize, measure,
present and disclose leases. The standard provides a single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to recognize assets and liahilities for
all leases unless the lease term s 12 months or less or the underlying asset has a low value. Lessors continue to classify leases as operating
or finance, with IFRS 16 approach to lessor accounting substantially unchanged from its predecessor, TAS 17 'Leases’. IFRS 16 replaces IAS
17, IFRIC 4 'Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease’, SIC-15 'Operating Leases—Incentives’ and SIC-27 'Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Leas2’. The management of the Company is in the process of evaluating the impacts
of the aforesaid standard in the Company's financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 9 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2019) clarify that for the purpose of assessing whether
a prepayment feature meets the Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPL’) condition, the party exercising the option may pay or
receive reasonable compensation for the prepayment irrespedtive of the reason for prepayment. In other words, prepayment features with
negative compensation do not automatically fail SPPL The amendments are not likely to have significant impact on the Company’s financial
statements.

[FRIC 23 'Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments' (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2019). The interpretation
addresses the determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is
uncertainty over income tax treatments under IAS 12 ‘Income Taxes'. It specifically considers: whether tax treatments should be considered
collectively; assumptions for taxation authorities' examinations; the determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses,
unused tax credits and tax rates; and the effect of changes in facts and circumstances. The interpretation is not expected to have a material
Impact on the Company's financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Finandal Statements’ and IAS B ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2020). The amendments are intended to make the definition of material in IAS
1 easier to understand and are not intended to alter the underlying concept of materiality in IFRS. In addition, the [ASB has also issued
guidance on how to make materiality judgements when preparing general purpose financial statements in accordance with IFRS.

IAS 19 (Amendments), 'Employee Benefits' - Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settement (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
01 January 2019). The amendments clarify that on amendment, curtailment or setlement of a defined benefit plan, a company now uses
Updated actuarial assumptions to determine its current service cost and net interest for the period, and the effect of the asset ceiling is
disregarded when calculating the gain or loss on any setlement of the plan and is dealt with separately in other comprehensive income. The
application of amendments is not likely to have an impact on Company's financial statements.

On 12 December 2017, T1ASB issued Annual Improvements to IFRSs: 2015 ~ 2017 Cyde, incarporating amendments to four IFRSs more
spedficlly in IAS 12 ‘Income Taxes', relevant to the Company. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01
January 2019. The amendments have no significant impact on the Company's financial statements and have therefore not been analyzed in
detail.

0On 29 March 2018, the IASB has issued a revised Conceptual Framework. The new Framework: reintroduces the terms stewardship and
prudence; introduces a new asset definition that focuses on rights and a new liability definition that is likely to be broader than the definition
it replaces, but does not change the distinction between a liability and an equity instrument; removes from the assetand liability definitions
references to the expected flow of economic benefits—this lowers the hurdle for identifying the existence of an assetor liability and puts more
emphasis on reflecting uncertainty in measurement; discusses historical cost and current value measures, and provides some guidance on
how the [ASB would go about selecting a measurement basis for a particular asset or liability; states that the primary measure of financial
performance is profit or loss, and that only in exceptional circumstances will the IASB use other comprehensive income and only for income
or expenses that arise from a change in the current value of an asset or liability; and discusses uncertainty, de-recognition, unit of account,
the reporting entity and combined finandal statements. The Framework is not an IFRS and does not override any standard, so nothing will
change in the short term. The revised Framewark will be used in future standard-setting decisions, but no changes will be made to current
IFRSs. Preparers might also use the Framework to assist them in developing accounting policies where an issue is not addressed by an IFRS.
It is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2020 for preparers that develop an accounting policy based on the
Framework.

f) Standards and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet effective and not considered
relevant to the Company

There are other standards and amendments to published approved accounting stendards that are mandatory for accounting periods
beginning on or after 01 July 2019 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial
statements and are therefore not detziled in these finandal statements.
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2.2 Property, plant, equipment and depreciation

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

All operating fixed assets except freehold land are stated at cost less accumulated depredation and any identified im pairment loss, except
those subject to revaluation which are stated at revalued amount less accumulated depredation and any Identified impairment loss. Capital
work-in-progress is stated at cost less any recognized impairment loss. Freehold land is stated at revalued amount less any identified
impairment loss. Cost of operating fixed assets consists of historical cost, borrowing cost pertaining to the construction / erection period of
qualifying assets and other directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to working condition.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment are recognized, net of deferred income tax, in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in revaluation surplus in shareholders' equity. To the extent that Increase reverses a dearease
previously recognized in the statement of profit or loss, the increase is first recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Decreases that
reverse previous increases of the same asset are first recognized in other comprehensive income to the extent of the remaining surplus
attributable to the asset; all other decreases are charged to the statement of profit or loss. Each year, the difference between depreciation
based on the revalued carrying amount of the assat charged to the statement of profit or loss and depredation based on the assets original
cast, net of deferred income tax, is reclassified from surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment to accumulated loss.

Subsequent costs are incuded in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when itis probable that
future economic benefits assodated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repair and maintenance costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its carrying
Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is charged to the statement of profit or loss applying the reducing balance method so as to
write off the cost / deprediable amount of the assets aver their estimated useful lives at the rates given in Note 13.1. The Company charges
the depredation on additions from the month when the asset is available for use and on deletions up to the month preceding the disposal
when the asset is de-recognized. The residual values and useful lives are reviewed by the management, at each finandal year-end and
adjusted if impact on depreciation is significant.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is induded in the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is de-recognized.

Investment properties

Land and buildings held to earn rental income are classified as investment properties. Investment properties are carried at fair value which is
based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. The
valuation of the properties is carried out with sufficient regularity.

Gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of investment properties is included in the statement of profit or loss for the year in which
it arises.
Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to depredation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subjed to
depredation are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount for which asset's carrying amount exceeds Its recoverable
amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date. Reversals of the
impairment losses are restricted to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depredation or amortization, if impairment losses had not been recagnized. An impairment loss or reversal of impairment
loss is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Share capital

COrdinary shares are classified as equity and recognized at their face value. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, if any.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are recognized as expense in the period in which these are incurred except to the extent of borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset. Such borrowing costs are capitalized as part of the cost of that
asset.

Inventories
Inventories, except for stock in transit and waste stock, are stated at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined as follows:
Stores, spare parts and loose tools

Usable stares, spare parts and loose tools are valued prindpally at moving average cost, while items considered obsolete are carried at nil
value. In transit stores, spare parts and loose tools are valued at invoice amount plus other charges paid thereon.

Stock-in-trade
Cost of raw materials, work-in-process and finished goods is determined as follows:

(i) For raw materials: Weighted average cost.

(ii) For work-in-process and finished goods: Average manufacturing cost including a portion of production overheads.
Materials in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid thereon. Waste stock is valued at net realizable value.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated cost of completion and estimated
costs necessary to make a sale.
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2.8 cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents comprise cash in hand, cash at banks on current accounts and other short term highly liguid instruments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in values.

2.9 Staff retirement benefit

The Company operates defined benefit plan - unfunded gratuity scheme for its permanent employees, who have completed the minimum
qualifying period of service as defined under the scheme. The liabilities relating to defined benefit plan are determined through actuarial
valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method. Latest actuarial valuation has been carried on 30 June 2019, The method involves making
assumptions about discount rates, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the long term nature of the benefit, such estimates are
subject to certain uncertainties. Significant assumptions used to carry out the actuarial valuation have been disclosed in Note 8.5 to these
financial statements.

Remeasurements changes which comprise actuarial gains and |osses are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income.

2,10 Provisions

Pravisions are recognized when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying ecanomic benefits will be required to settle the obligations and a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions
are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

2.11 Taxation
Current

Provision for cuirent tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the prevailing law for taxation of income.
The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or tax rates expected to apply to the profit for the year, if enacted. The
charge for current tax also indudes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years arising from
assessments framed during the year for such years.

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method in respect of all temporary differences arising from differences between the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities in the finandal statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable profit
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse based on tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the statement of profit or loss, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

2,12 Dividend and other appropriations

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognized as a liability in the Company's finandal statements in the period in which it
is declared and other appropriations are recognized in the period in which these are approved by the Board of Directors.

2.13 IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments’

The Company has adopted 1IFRS 9 "Finandial Instruments” from 01 July 2018. The standard introduced new classification and measurement
models for financial assets. A finandal asset shall be measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to
hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows which arise on specified dates and that are solely principal and interest. A debt
instrument shall be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a business model whose objective is to
both hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows which arise on specified dates that are solely principal and interest as well as selling
the asset on the basis of its fair value. All other finandal assets are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss unless the
Company makes an irrevocable election on initial recognition to present gains and losses on equity instruments in other comprehensive
income. Despite these requirements, a financial asset may be irrevocably designated as measurad at fair value through profit or loss to
reduce the effect of, or eliminate, an accounting mismatch. For financia liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss, the standard
requires the portion of the change in fair value that relates to the Company's own credit risk to be presented in other comprehensive income
(unless it would create an accounting mismatch). New simpler hedge accounting requirements are intended to more closely align the
accounting treatment with the risk management activities of the Company. New impairment requirements use an 'Expected Credit Loss'
('ECL") model to recognize an allowance. Impairment is measured using a 12-month ECL method unless the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition in which case the lifetime ECL method is adopted. For receivables, a simplified
approach to measure expected credit losses using a lifetime expected |oss allowance is available.

The Company has adopted IFRS 9 without restating the prior year results. Key changes in accounting policies resulting from application of
IFRS 9 are as follows:

i) Recognition of financial instruments

The Company initially recognizes financial assets on the date when they are originated. Financial liabilities are initially recognized on the trade
date when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

ii)  Classification and measurement of financial instruments

IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” for the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities. However, it replaces the previous [AS 39 categories for finandal assets i.e. loans and receivables, Fair
Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL), available for sale and held to maturity with the categories such as amortized cost, FVTPL and Fair
Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FYTOCI).
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Investments and other financial assets
a) Classification
From 01 July 2018, the Company dassifies its finandal assets at amortized cost.

The dassification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.
b) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a finandal asset at its fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acguisition of the finandal asset. Finandal assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining wether their
cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest. Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business
model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Company classifies its debt instruments at amortized cost.
Finandal assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest
rate method. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition is recognized directly in profit or loss and presented in other income /[ (other
expenses).

Finandal liabilities

Classification and measurement

The adoption of IFRS 9 did not have a signi?cant effedt on the Company's accounting polides related to ?nancial liabilities, and therefore no
change in the classification and measurement of financial liabilities.
iii) Impairment of financial assets

From 01 July 2018, the Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried
at amortized cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Far trade dehts and other receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime
losses to be recognized from initial recognition of the receivables.

iv)  De-recognition
a) Finandal assets

The Company de-recognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to
receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are
transferred, or it neither transfers nor retins substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the
transferred asset. Any interest in such de-recognized financial assets that is created or retained by the Company is recognized as a separate
asset or liability.

b) Finandal liabilities

The Company de-recognizes a finandal liability (or a part of financial liability) from its statement of finandal position when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expired.

V) Offsetting of financial instruments

Finandal assets and finandal liabilities are set off and the net amount is reported in the finandal statements when there is a legal enforceable
right to set off and the Company intends either to seftle on a net basis or to realize the assets and fo settle the liabilities simultaneously.

vi) Impacts of adoption of IFRS 9 on these financial statements as on 01 July 2018

On 01 July 2018, the Company's management has assessed which business models apply to the finandal assets held by the Company at the
date of initial application of IFRS 9 (01 July 2018) and has classified its financial instruments into appropriate IFRS 9 categories. The main
effects resulting from this redassification are as follows:

Financial assets (01 July 2018)
Held to Loans and Amortized

maturity receivables cost
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Cpening balance 6,061 81,310 -

Adjustments due to adoption of IFRS 9:
Adjustment on adoption of IFRS 9 by reclassifying financial instruments designated as
'Loans and Receivables' and 'Held-to-Maturity' to "Amortized Cost' (6,061) (81,310) 87,371

Recagnition of expected life time credit losses on trade debts (7,081)
Opening balance (after reclassification) = = 80,290
The impact of these changes on the Company's accumulated loss and equity is as follows:
Effect on Effect on
accumulated total it
loss otal equity
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Opening balance (before classification) (53,970) 747,289
Adjustment on adoption of IFRS 9 due to recognition of expected life time credit losses on trade debts (7,081) (7,081)
Opening balance (after reclassification) (61,051) 740,208

"2.14 Borrowings

Financing and borrowings are initially recognized at fair value of the consideration received, net of transaction costs. They are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
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"2.15 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less
any allowance for expected credit losses. Trade receivables generally do not include amounts averdue by 365 days.

The Company has applied the simplified approach to measure expected credit losses, which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance. Actual
credit loss experience over past years is used to base the calculation of expected credit loss.

Cther receivables are recognized at amortized cost, less any allowance for expected credit losses.
'2.16 Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are initially recognized at fair value, which is normally the transaction cost.
"2.17 Functional and presentation currency along with foreign currency transactions and translation

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the Company operates (the functional currency). The financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company's functional
and presentation currency. All monetary assets and liabllities in foreign currendes are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing
at the reporting date. Transactions in foreign currendes are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the setiement of such transactions and from the translation at year end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are charged or credited to statement of profit or loss. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange
rates prevailing at the date of transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency that are stated at fair value are
translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the date when fair values are determined.

2.18 Revenue from contracts with customers

The Company has adopted IFRS 15 from 01 July 2018. The standard provides a single comprehensive model for revenue recognition. The
core principle of the standard is that an entity shall recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The standard
introduced a new contract-based revenue recognition model with a measurement approach that is based on an allocation of the transaction
price. This is described further in the accounting polices below. Credit risk is presented separately as an expense rather than adjusted against
revenue. Contracts with customers are presented as a contract liability, a contract asset, or a receivable, depending on the relationship
between the Company's performance and the customer's payment. These are further elaborated hereunder:

i) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company is expected to be entitied in exchange for
transferring goods or services to a customer. For each contract with a customer, the Company: identifies the contract with a customer;
identifies the performance obligations in the contract; determings the transaction price which takes into account estimates of variable
consideration and the time value of money; allocates the transaction price to the separate performance obligations on the basis of the relative
stand-alone selling price of each distinct good or service to be delivered; and recognizes revenue when or as each performance obligation is
satisfied in a manner that depicts the transfer to the customer of the goods or services promised.

Variable consideration within the transaction price, if any, reflects concessions provided to the customer such as discounts, rebates and
refunds, any potential banuses receivable from the customer and any other contingent events. Such estimates are determined using either
the 'expected value' or 'most likely amount' method. The measurement of variable consideration is subject to a constraining prindple
whereby revenue will only be recognized to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognized will not occur. The measurement constraint continues until the uncertainty assodated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when the customer obtains control of the goods, which is generally at the
time of delivery.

Interest
Interest income is recognized as interest accrues using the effective interest method. This is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a

financial asset and allocating the interest income over the relevant period using the effective interest rate, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the finandial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Rental Income

Revenue from rental income is recognized when rent is accrued.

Other revenue

Other revenue is recognized when it is received or when the right to receive payment is established.
ii)  Contract assets

Contract assets arise when the Company performs its performance obligations by transferring goods to a customer before the customer pays
its consideration or before payment is due. Contract assets are treated as finandal assets for impairment purposes.

iii) Right of return assets
Right of return assets represents the right to recover inventory sold to customers and is based on an estimate of customers who may exercise

their right to return the goods and daim a refund. Such rights are measured at the value at which the inventory was previously carried prior
to sale, less expected recovery costs and any impairment.
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iv)

2.19

2.20

2.21

60

Contract liabilities

Contract liability is the obligation of the Company to transfer goods to a customer for which the Company has
received consideration from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers
goods, a contract liability is recognized when the payment is made. Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue
when the Company performs its performance obligations under the contract.

Impacts of adoption of IFRS 15 on these financial statements as on 01 July 2018

The Company has adopted IFRS 15 by applying the modified retrospective approach according to which the
Company is notrequired to restate the prior year results. However, the application of IFRS 15 does not have any
impact on the revenue recognition policy of the Company and therefore, the cumulative effect of initially
applying this standard as an adjustment to the opening balance of accumulated loss in the year of initial
application is Rupees Nil.

Earnings / (loss) per share

The Company presents Earnings Per Share (EPS) or Lass Per Share (LPS) data for its ordinary shares. EPS /
(LPS) is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Contingent assets

Contingent assets are disclosed when the Company has a possible asset that arises from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent assets are not recognized until their realization becomes
certain.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past events whose
existence will only be confirmed by the ocaurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent liabilities are not recognized, only disclosed, unless the
possibility of a future outflow of resources is considered remote. In the event that the outflow of resources
associated with a contingent liability is assessed as probable, and if the size of the outflow can be reliably
estimated, a provision is recognized in the financial statements,

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL

" 2019 " 2018 " 2019 " 2018
(NUMBER OF SHARES) (RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
9 060 000 9 060 000 Ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each fully paid
in cash 90,600 90,600
600 000 600 000 Ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each issued as
fully paid bonus shares 6,000 6,000
9 660 000 9 660 000 96,600 96,600

DIRECTORS' LOANS

These loans are interest free and payable at the discretion of the Company.

PREMIUM ON ISSUE OF SHARES

This reserve can be utiized by the Company only for the purpose specfied in section 81 of the Companies Act, 2017.

SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - NET OF DEFERRED

INCOME TAX
Property, plant and equipment (Note 6.1) 218,845 203,362
Investment properties (Note 6.2) 72,086 79,269

290,931 282,631
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6.1

Property, plant and equipment

Balance as at 01 July

Add:
Surplus arising on revaluation during the year - net of deferred ncome tax

Impact of change in deferred income tax rate
Surplus related to investment properties - net of deferred income tax

Transferred to accumulated loss in respedt of incremental depredation

charged during the year - net of deferred income tax

Adjustment of surplus on sale of plant and machinery - net of deferred

income tax

Surplus related to investment properties - net of deferred income tax

r r

2019 2018
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
203,362 214,974
14,107 :
; 1,594
7,183 2
224,652 216,568

(5,807) (5,998)

- (18)

- (7,190)

(5,807) (13,206)

218,845 203,362

6.1.1 Freehold land, buildings thereon, plant and machinery, electric installations / appliances, generators and
laboratory equipment of the Company were revalued by an independent valuer, Messers Zafar Igbal and
Company on 29 June 2019 on the basis of prevailing market prices. Previously these assets were revalued by
independent valuers on 30 September 2001, 01 July 2003, 10 April 2007, 28 June 2013 and 30 June 2016.

6.2

8.1

Investment Properties

Balance as at 01 July
Surplus related to investment properties - net of deferred income tax

Surplus related to investment properties - net of deferred income tax

Balance as at 30 June

DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITY

This comprises the following:

Taxable temporary difference
Accelerated tax depreciation

Deductible temporary differences
Staff retirement gratuity

Accumulated tax losses
Allowance for expected credit losses
Minimum tax

STAFF RETIREMENT GRATUITY

The amount included in the statement of financial position is as follows:

Present value of defined benefit obligation
Movement in present value of defined benefit obligation

Balance as at 01 July
Provision for the year (Note 8.3)
Retirement benefit paid

Remeasurements chargeable to other comprehensive income (Note 8.4)

Balance as at 30 June

79,269 72,079
b 7,190
79,269 79,269
(7,183) .
72,086 79,269
167,853 151,754
(5,300) (3,522)
(73,124) (76,690)
(2,053) :
(18,111) (28,072)
(98,588) (108,284)
69,265 43,470
18,274 12,144
12,144 8,950
9,806 8,269
(3,296) (3,753)
(380) (1,322)
18,274 12,144
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8.2

83

8.4

8.5

8.6

'8.7

P
8.8

2019 2018
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Reconciliation of the movements in the net liability recognized in the
statement of financial position
Opening balance 12,144 8,950
Add: Provision for the year (Note 8.3) 9,806 8,269
Experience adjustment recognized in other comprehensive income (Note 8.4) (380) (1,322)
21,570 15,897
Less: Paid during the year (3,296) (3,753)
18,274 12,144
Provision for the year
Current service cost 8,861 7,721
Interest cost 945 548
9,806 8,269
Remeasurements chargeable to other comprehensive income
Actuarial gain from changes in finandal assumptions 45 7
Experience adjustments (425) (1,329)
(380) (1,322)
2019 2018
Principal actuarial assumptions used
Discount rate for interest cost in the statement of profit and loss charge (per annum) 9.00% 7.75%
Discount rate for year end obligation (per annum) 14.25% 9.00%
Expected rate of increase in salaries (% per annum) 13.25% 8.00%
Average duration of the benefit 5 5
Mortality rates SLIC 2001-05 SLIC 2001-05
set back 1 year set back 1 year
Withdrawal rate Age based Age based
Retirement assumption Age 60 Age 60

The estimated expenses to be charged to the statement of profit or loss for the year ending on 30 June 2020 is
Rupees 13.219 million.

Sensitivity analysis for actuarial assumptions:

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation as at reporting date to changes in the weighted principal
assumption is:

Discount rate 1.00% 1.00%
Increase in assumption (Rupees in thousand) (870) (583)
Decrease in assumption (Rupees in thousand) 980 661
Future salary increase 1.00% 1.00%
Increase in assumption (Rupees in thousand) 980 661
Decrease in assumption (Rupees in thousand) (884) (593)

Amounts for the current and previous four years:

[ 2019 [ 2018 [ 2017 [ 2016 [ 2015 |
RUPEES IN THOUSAND ===== ==s=nnnaumanann

Present value of defined benefit obligation 18,274 12,144 8,950 8,007 1,174
Remeasurements on defined benefit obligation (380) 1,322 374 - -

The sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In
practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating
the sensitivity of the defined benefit plan to significant actuarial assumptions, the same method (present value of
the defined benefit plan calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has
been applied as when calculating the gratuity liability recognized within the statement of financial position.
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The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to
previous year, except for certain changes as given in Note 8.5.

8.9 Risk assodated with the scheme
a) Final salary risk
The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what we assumed. Since the
benefit in calculated on the final salary (which will dosely reflect inflation and other macroeconomic factors), the
benefit amount increases as salary increases.
b) Demographic risks
Mortality risk
The risk that the actual mortality experience is different than the assumed mortality. This effect is more
pronounced in schemes where the age and service distribution is on the higher side.
Withdrawal risk
The risk of actual withdrawals experience is different from assumed withdrawal probability. The significance of
the withdrawal risk varies with the age, service and the entitled benefits of the beneficiary.
9, LONG TERM SECURITY DEPOSIT
This represents security deposit received from Masood Textile Mills Limited (MTM) against lease of investment
properties of the Company. This amount is being utilized by the Company in accordance with the written
agreement between MTM and the Company in terms of section 217 of the Companies Act, 2017.
2019 2018
. (RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
10. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Creditors (Note 10.1) 123,732 79,372
Accrued liabilities 45,635 38,347
Advances from customers 2,438 22,318
Income tax deducted at source 677 1,672
Workers' profit participation fund (Note 10.2) 3,239 180

175721 ___ 141,889

10.1 These indude Rupees 14.081 million (2018: Rupees 11.722 million) due to Blue Moon Filling Station, a related

party.
10.2 Workers' profit participation fund

Balance as on 01 July 180 -

Interest for the year (Note 30) 11 "

Provision for the year (Note 28) 3,239 180
3,430 180

Less: Payments during the year 191 -

Balance as on 30 June 3,239 180

10.2.1 Interest is paid at prescribed rate under the Companies Profit (Workers' Participation) Act, 1968 on funds

utilized by the Company till the date of allocation to workers.
11. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

From banking companies - secured

Running and cash finances (Note 11.1) 505,792 369,041

Others - unsecured

Other related parties (NOtE 11.2) 20,703 19,203
526,495 388,244
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"11.1 These finances are obtained from banking companies under mark-up arrangements and are secured against

hypothecation of stocks and further secured against the pledge of cotton, polyester and yarn. These form part of
total credit facility of Rupees 877 million (2018: Rupees 850 million). The rates of mark-up range from 6.00%
to 12.99% (2018: 6.00% to 10.15%) per annum on the balance outstanding.

11.2 These represent interest free loans obtained from directors of the Company which are repayable on demand.

F,

12.

13.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

a) Contingencies

i) The Company is contingently liable for Rupees 3.000 million (2018: Rupees 3.000 million) to Director
Excise and Taxation on account of import duty.

ii) Guarantees of Rupees 32.273 million (2018: Rupees 26.888 million) are given by the banks of the
Company to Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited (SNGPL) against gas connections and Faisalabad Electric Supply
Company Limited (FESCO) against eleciricity connection.

iii) An appeal has been filed by the Company before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue, Lahore dated 07 June
2017 against the demand of Rupees 22.378 million (2018: Rupees 22.378 million) by the tax department
regarding disallowance of minimum tax adjustment for the tax year 2011. The Appellate Tribunal Inland
Revenue disposed the appeal. Then the department filed a reference before the Lahore High Court, Lahore
aganist this order. The related provision is not made in these finandal statements in view of favorable outcome
of the appeal.

iv) The Company has filed appeals in Islamabad High Court, Islamabad, dated 29 August 2016 and in Lahore
High Court, Lahore, dated 10 August 2017 against the charge of Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC)
and Re-Gasified Liquefied Natural Gas (RLNG) respectively, charged by SNGPL. The related provision of Rupees
38.329 million (2017: Rupees 21.249 million) and Rupees 12.224 million (2017: Rupees 8.478 million) is not
accounted for in these financial statements in view of favorable outcome of the appeals.

v) An appeal has been filed by the Company before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue, Lahore dated 16 April
2019, against the order of Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) dated 14 November 2018, for
demand of Rupees 14.663 million by the tax department regarding disallowance of withholding taxes as
adopted in income tax return for the tax year 2016. The related provision is not made in these financial
statements in view of favorable outcome of the appeal.

vi) The Company filed appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue, Lahore as on 21 March 2019 against
the order of Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue for demand of Rupees 114.118 million by the tax
department by nullifying the proration of the income between FTR and NTR as adopted by the Company for the
tax year 2014. The related provision is not made in these financial statements in view of favorable outcome of
the appeal.

vii) An appeal has been filed by the Regional Tax Office (RTO) Faisalabad before Appellate Tribunal Inland
Revenue, Lahore in March 2019 because Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue amended the assessment for
the tax year 2007 and created a demand of Rupees 5.766 million on the issue of proration of expenses and
prorated the specific expenses related to normal tax regime to final tax regime. The related provision is not
made in these financial statements in view of favorable outcome of the appeal.

viii) An appeal has been filed by the Company before Appelate Tribunal Inland Revenue, Lahore for the tax year
2017 involving a demand of Rupees 8.966 million on 26 October 2018. The original order was issued by the
Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue for non-deduction of withholding tax on certain parties under various
dauses of section 153 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The related provision is not made in these financial
statements in view of favorable outcome of the appeal.

b) Commitments

i) There was no capital commitment as at 30 June 2019 (2018: Rupees Nil).

ii) Letters of credit / contradts for other than capital expenditure were of Rupees 14.376 million (2018: Rupees
28.167 million).

" L

2019 2018
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Operating fixed assets (Note 13.1) 828,706 818,372
Capital work-in-progress (Nofe 13.2) - 2,687

828,706 821,059
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13.1.4 Had there been no revaluation, cost, accumulated depreciation and book value of the revalued assets

would have been as follows:

Freehold land
Buildings on freehold land:
Mills
Other
Plant and machinery
Electric installations / appliances
Generators

Laboratory equipment

2019
2018

"13.2 Capital work-in-progress

Advance against vehicle

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Opening net book value transferred from property, plant and

equipment

Transferred from property, plant and equipment

Transferred to property, plant and equipment

Fair value gain transferred to the statement of profit or loss on
remeasurement of investment properties at the year end

Fair value gain transferred to the statement of profit or loss on
remeasurement of investment properties at the time of transfer to

property, plant and equipment

Cost Accumulated| Net book
deprecdiation value
------------ (RUPEES IN THOUSAND) -----======-.
1,266 = 1,266
60,513 38,483 22,030
13,641 8,033 5,608
1,018,762 544,302 474,460
23,488 13,679 9,809
82,044 56,584 25,460
11,533 6,904 4,629
1,211,247 667,985 543,262
1,190,962 640,979 549,983
2019 2018

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
- 2,687
120,381 105,979
- 11,561
120,381 117,540
(8,923) -
111,458 117,540
3,890 -
206 -
4,096 2,841
115,554 120,381

14.1 During the year, the Company transferred some of its freehold land and buildings thereon, given on
lease, from investment properties to property, plant and equipment using fair value model. Latest fair
value of the remaining investment properties has been determined on 29 June 2019 by Messrs Zafar
Igbal and Company, an independent valuer. No expenses directly related to investment properties were

incurred during the year.

"14.2 Forced sales value of investment properties is Rupees 98.221 million (2018: Rupees 102.324 million).

"14.3 Particulars of investment properties are as follows:

Q g Covered
Particulars Location Area Area
Kanals Sq ft.
Land and buildings 35-Kilometers Sheikhupura Road, Faisalabad 34.35 105 075

148
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2019 2018
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

15. LONG TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Long term deposits 3,736 3,726
Long term prepayments 340 272
4,076 3,998
Less: Current portion shown under current assets (Note 20) 242 185
3,834 3,813

16. STORES, SPARE PARTS AND LOOSE TOOLS

Stores (Note 16.1) 13,577 15,109
Spare parts 28,957 27,269
Loose tools 168 168

42,702 42,546

e

16.1 These include stores in transit of Rupees 1.110 million (2018: Rupees 4.082 million).

17.  STOCK IN TRADE

Raw materials (Note 17.1) 395,599 157,677
Work-in-process 19,574 14,542
Finished goods 4,682 15,149
Waste 3,378 2,286

423,23 189,654

17.1 Raw materials include stock in transit of Rupees 37.667 million (2018: Rupees Nil).
'18. TRADE DEBTS

Considered good:

Unsecured - Others (Note 18.1) 38,759 68,642
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses (Note 18.2) 7,081 -
31,678 68,642

"18.1 As at 30 June 2019, trade debts of Rupees 31.432 million (2018: Rupees 55.048 million) were past
due but not impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers from whom there is no
recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade debts is as follows:

Upto 1 month 17,729 10,980
1 to 6 months 13,057 13,985
More than 6 months 646 30,083

31,432 55,048

18.2 Allowance for expected credit losses
Opening balance - -

Add: Recognized as on 01 July 2018 7,081 -

Closing balance 7,081 -
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2019 2018
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
19. LOANS AND ADVANCES

Considered good:
Employees - interest free:

Against salary (19.1) 859 761

Against expenses

Executive 200 200
Other employees 128 88
328 288

1,187 1,049

Advances to suppliers / service providers 5,139 8,402
Letters of credit 61 101
Income tax 76,549 72,215
82,936 81,767

r

19.1 These represent interest free loans given to employees for meeting their personal expenditure and are
secured against balance to the credit of employees in the staff retirement gratuity. These are
recoverable in equal monthly installments.

20. SHORT TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Deposits 1,313 1,313
Prepayments = 41
Current portion of long term deposits and prepayments (Note 15) 242 185

1,555 1,539

21.  OTHER RECEIVABLES

Considered good:

Export rebate and claims 1,161 1,161
Sales tax and special excise duty refundable 15,234 19,876
Miscellaneous 3,676 2,104

20,071 23,141

22. SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
At amortized cost

Term Deposit Receipt (Note 22.1) 5,500 =
Current portion of long term investments - 6,061

5,500 6,061

22.1 This represents term deposit receipt made with National Bank of Pakistan having maturity period of 6
months. Rate of profit is 7.10 percent per annum (2018: Nil).
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CASH AND BANK BALANCES

With banks:
On current accounts

Cash in hand

REVENUE

Sales
Waste

Less: Sales tax

COST OF SALES

Raw materials consumed (Note 25.1)

Cost of raw materials sold
Loading and unloading charges
Salaries, wages and other benefits
Staff retirement benefit

Stores, spare parts and loose tools consumed
Packing materials consumed
Repair and maintenance

Fuel and power

Insurance

Other factory overheads
Depredation (Note 13.1.2)

Work-in-process

Opening stock
Closing stock

Cost of goods manufactured

Finished goods

Opening stock
Closing stock

Raw materials consumed

Opening stock
Add: Purchased during the year

Less: Closing stock

2019 2018
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
49,319 4,422
733 342
50,052 4,764
1,819,285 1,555,223
81,384 53,891
1,900,669 1,609,114
15,359 10,641
1,885,310 1,508,473
1,180,684 951,552
10,658 73,572
3,309 3,086
165,942 138,345
7,924 6,842
44,928 46,923
25,609 27,774
2,057 1,581
262,209 235,184
2,487 3,038
610 3,051
36,320 36,754
1,742,737 1,527,702
14,542 2,906
(19,574) (14,542)
(5,032) (11,636)
1,737,705 1,516,066
17,435 39,224
(8,060) (17,435)
9,375 21,789
1,747,080 1,537,855
157,677 104,089
1,418,606 1,005,140
1,576,283 1,109,229
395,599 157,677
1,180,684 951,552

51
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'26. DISTRIBUTION COST

Salaries and other benefits
Staff retirement benefit
QOutward freight and handling
Commission to selling agents

27. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and other benefits
Staff retirement benefit
Rent, rates and taxes
Insurance

Travelling and conveyance
Vehides' running
Entertainment

Auditor's remuneration (Note 27.1)
Advertisement

Postage and telephone
Utilities

Printing and stationery
Repair and maintenance
Fee and subscription

Legal and professional
Miscellaneous
Depreciation (Note 13.1.2)

"27.1 Auditor's remuneration:

Audit fee
Half yearly review
Other certification

"28. OTHER EXPENSES

Net exchange loss

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Trade debts written off

Workers' profit participation fund (Note 10.2)

29. OTHER INCOME

Income from finandal assets
Interest / profit on investments
Income from non-financial assets

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment

Scrap sales

Rental income

Gain on remeasurement of investment properties (Note 14)
Others

2019 2018
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
567 1,080
63 120
485 840
996 905
2.111 2,945
15,825 13,083
1,819 1,307
450 562
1,498 801
2,451 1,986
5,286 3,994
1,686 1,271
725 595
154 217
1,275 1,169
2,871 2,086
306 353
1,099 779
1,245 1,898
755 170
1,639 1,143
3,885 3,962
42,969 35,376
600 500
75 75
50 20
725 575
. 2,666
- 21
- 659
3,239 180
3,239 3,526
389 500
49 -
- 60
13,796 12,747
4,096 2,841
- 102
17,941 15,750
18,330 16,250
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2019 2018
' (RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
30. FINANCE COST
Mark-up on short term borrowings 45,256 29,649
Bank charges and commission 1,447 1,955
Interest on workers' profit participation fund (Note 10.2) 11 -

46,714 31,604

"31. TAXATION

Charge for the year:
Current (Note 31.1) 22,636 17,364
Prior year adjustment (52) (108)
Deferred 19,923 (6,236)

42,507 11,020

"31.1 Provision for current taxation represents minimum tax on local sales under section 113 of the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001 adjusted by tax credit allowable as at 30 June 2019. The Company has
accumulated tax losses of Rupees 252.150 million including unabsorbed depreciation as at 30 June
2019 (2018: Rupees 264.447 million). Reconciliation of tax expense and product of accounting profit
multiplied by the applicable tax rate is not required in view of accumulated tax losses of the Company.

31.2 Under Section 5A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, a tax shall be imposed at the rate of 5% of
accounting profit before tax of the Company if it does not distribute at least 20% of its after tax profit
for the year within six months of the end of the year ended 30 June 2019 through cash. The requisite
cash dividend has been proposed by the Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on
October 05, 2019 and will be distributed within the prescribed time limit. Therefore, the recognition of
any income tax liability in this respect is not considered necessary.

32. EARNINGS / (LOSS) PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

There is no dilutive effect on the basis earnings / (loss) per share which is based on:

2019 2018
Profit / (loss) for the year after taxation (Rupees in thousand) 19,020 (7,603)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (Numbers) 9 660 000 9 660 000
Earnings / (loss) per share (Rupees) 1.97 (0.79)
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33.

33.1

33.2

2019 2018
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
CASH (USED IN) / GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Profit before taxation 61,527 3,417

Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items:

Depreciation 40,205 40,716

(Gain) / loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (49) 21

Provision for staff retirement gratuity 9,806 8,269

Gain on remeasurement of investment properties (4,096) (2,841)
Interest / profit on long term investments (52) (500)
Trade debts written off - 659

Finance cost 46,714 31,604

Allowance for expected credit losses

Working capital changes (Note 33.1) (163,309) (68,427)

(9,254) 12,918

Working capital changes

(Increase) / decrease in current assets

Stores, spare parts and loose tools (156) (5,941)
Stock in trade (233,579) (43,435)
Trade debts 29,883 (17,684)
Loans and advances 3,165 (4,727)
Short term deposits and prepayments (16) 892
Other receivables 3,562 1,015

(197,141) (69,880)

Increase in trade and other payables 33,832 1,453
(163,309) (68,427)

Reconciliaion of movement of liability to cash flows from finandng activity:

Short term
borrowings
(RUPEES
IN
THOUSAND

Balance as at 01 July 2018 388,244
Short term borrowings - net 138,251
Balance as at 30 June 2019 ~ 526,495 495
REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amount charged in these financial statements for remuneration induding all benefits to Chief
Executive Officer, Directors and Executive of the Company is as follows:

Executive
2019 | 2018

Managerial remuneration 1,400 1,149
Allowances

House rent 696 569

Utilities 4 5

2,100 1,723

Number of persons 1 1

Chief Executive Officer and some of the Directors and Executives of the Company are provided with free Company
maintained vehicles.

Chief Executive Officer, Directors and some Executives are entited to reimbursement of travelling expenses,
electricity, gas and water bills.

No remuneration was paid to non-executive directors of the Company.
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35. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties comprise associated undertaking, other related parties and key management personnel. The
Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions with various related parties. Detail of transactions
with related parties, other than those which have been spedfically disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements is as

follows:

Particulars Basis of relationship Nature of 2019 2018
transaction (RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

Associated undertaking

Blue Moon Filling Station  Director of the Company is  Fuel purchased 2,359 2,454

partner of the undertaking
Other related parties
Short term borrowings Directors of the Company Loans obtained / (repaid)-net 1,500 (8,150)

35.1 Detail of compensation to key management personnel comprising of Chief Executive Officer, Director and Executive is
disclosed in Note 34.

2019 2018
(NUMBER OF PERSONS)

36. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Number of employees as on 30 June 582 503
Average number of employees during the year 663 606

'37. PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

Spinning 2019 2018
100% plant capacity converted to 20s count based on 3 shifts per day for 1 095

shifts (2018: 1 095 shifts) (Kgs.) 9998 000 9 699 000
Actual production converted to 20s count based on 3 shifts per day for 1 080

shifts (2018: 1 080 shifts) (Kgs.) 8740777 7 786 684

"37.1 REASON FOR LOW PRODUCTION
Under utilization of available capacity is mainly due to periodical scheduled maintenance.

'38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

"38.1 Financial risk factors

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of finandial risks: market risk (incuding currency risk, other price risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company's financial
performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Company's finance department under policies approved by the Board of Directors.
The Board provides principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas such as currency
risk, other price risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, investment of excess liquidity and use of non-derivative
finanaal instruments.

(a) Market risk
(i) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future commercial transactions or receivables and payables
that exist due to transactions in foreign currencies. The Company have no receivable / payable balance in foreign
currency as at 30 June 2019.

(ii) Other price risk

Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a finandial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are
caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial
instrument traded in the market. The Company is not exposed to commodity price risk.
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(iii) Interest rate risk

This represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a finandcial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Company's interest rate risk arises from short term borrowings and short term
investments. Financial instruments at variable rates expose the Company to cash flow interest
rate risk. Financial instruments at fixed rate expose the Company to fair value interest rate

risk.
At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company’s interest bearing financial

instruments was:

v v

2019 2018

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Fixed rate instruments
Finandal assets
Long term investments & 5,500
Short term investments 5,500 -
Floating rate instruments
Financial liabilities
Shaort term borrowings 505,792 369,041

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rate at the reporting date would not
affect profit or loss of the Company.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

If interest rates at the year end date, fluctuates by 1% higher / lower with all other variables
held constant, profit / (loss) after taxation for the year would have been Rupees 4.805 million
(2018: Rupees 3.690 million) higher / lower mainly as a result of higher / lower interest
expense on floating rate borrowings. This analysis is prepared assuming the amount of
finandial instruments outstanding at reporting date were outstanding for the whole year.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss
for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. The carrying amount of financial
assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date was as follows:

r

2019 " 2018
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

Investments 5,500 6,061
Loans and advances 859 761
Deposits 5,049 5,039
Trade debts 31,678 68,642
Other receivables 3,676 2,104
Bank balances 49,319 4,422

96,081 87,029
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The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by
reference to external credit ratings (if available) or to historical information about counterparty

default rate.
Rating 2019 2018
Short Long
Tefii  tarm Agency(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Banks

Conventional Accounts

National Bank of Pakistan A-1+  AAA VIS 2 42
Allied Bank Limited Al+ AAA PACRA = 6
Askari Bank Limited Al+ AA+ PACRA - 3
Bank Alfalah Limited Al+ AA+ PACRA 10 85
Habib Bank Limited A-1+ AAA VIS 8,722 1,092
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited Al+ AA+ PACRA 20 1,522
MCB Bank Limited Al+ AAA PACRA 89 102
Soneri Bank Limited Al+ AA - PACRA 1 21
Bank Al-Habib Limited Al+ AA+ PACRA 4 4
United Bank Limited A-1+  AAA VIS - 15
JS Bank Limited Al+ AA - PACRA s 154
Sindh Bank Limited A-1 A+ VIS 9 9
Faysal Bank Limited Al+ AA PACRA 2 107

8,857 3,162

Shariah Compliant Accounts

Meezan Bank Limited A-1+ AA+ VIS 39,956 1,246
AlBaraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited A-1 A+ VIS 505 13
Bank Alfalah Limited Al+ AA+ PACRA 1 1
40,462 1,260
49,319 4,422

The Company's exposure to credit risk and allowance for expected credit losses related to trade
debts is disclosed in Note 18.

Due to the Company's long standing business relationships with these counterparties and after
giving due consideration to their strong financial standing, the management does not expect
non-performance by these counterparties on their obligations to the Company. Accordingly,
the credit risk is minimal.
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(c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities.

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining suffident cash and the availability of funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities. At 30 June 2019, the Company had Rupees 371.208 million (2018: Rupees
480.959 million) available borrowing limits from financial institutions and Rupees 50.052 million (2018: Rupees 4.764
million) cash and bank balances. The management believes the liquidity risk to be low. Following are the contractual
maturities of financial liabilities, including interest payments. The amounts disclosed in the table are undiscounted cash

flows:
Carrying Contractual 6 months 6-12 T More than
amount cash flows or less months ¥ 2 years
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 30 June 2019:

Non-derivative financial liabilities:

Trade and other payables 169,367 169,367 169,367 - - -
Unclaimed dividend 742 742 742 = - -
Acarued mark-up 15,083 15,083 15,083 - - -
Short term borrowings 526,495 564,354 564,354 - - -

711,687 749,546 749,546 = = =

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 30 June 2018:

Non-derivative financial liabilities:

Trade and other payables 117,719 117,719 117,719 - - -
Unclaimed dividend 746 746 746 = = -
Accrued mark-up 8,221 8,221 8,221 - - -
Short term borrowings 388,244 395,516 395,516 - - -

514,930 522,202 522,202 - - =

The contractual cash flows relating to the abave financial liabilities have been determined on the basis of interest
rates / mark-up rates effective as at 30 June. The rates of interest / mark up have been disclosed in Note 11 to these

financial statements.

"38.2 Financial instruments by categories

At
amortized || Held-to- (jloansand | .,
cost maturity ||receivables
2019 2018
-===emmmmmmem---(RUPEES IN THOUSAND---------=---
Financial assets as per statement of financial position
Investments 5,500 6,061 - 6,061
Loans and advances 859 - 761 761
Deposits 5,049 - 5,039 5,039
Trade debts 31,678 = 68,642 68,642
Other receivables 3,676 - 2,104 2,104
Cash and bank balances 50,052 - 4,764 4,764
96,814 6,061 81,310 87,371

Financial liabilities as per statement of finandal position
Accued mark-up

Unclaimed dividend

Short term borrowings

Trade and other payables

At amortjzed cost
2019 2018
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

"

15,083 8,221

742 746
526,495 388,244
169,367 117,719

711,687 514,930
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38.3 Offsetting finandal assets and financial liabilities

As on reporting date, recognized financial instruments are not subject to offsetting as there are no
enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreements.

"38.4 Capital risk management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends to be paid to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. Consistent with others in the industry
and the requirements of the lenders, the Company monitors the capital structure on the basis of
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as borrowings divided by total capital employed. Borrowings
represent short term borrowings obtained by the Company as referred to in Note 11. Equity
represents 'total equity' as shown in the statement of financial position. Total capital employed
includes 'total equity' plus 'borrowings' as shown below:

2019 2018
Borrowings Rupees in thousand 526,495 388,244
Total equity Rupees in thousand 773,605 747,289
Total capital employed  Rupees in thousand 1,300,100 1,135,533
Gearing ratio Percentage 40.50 34.19

The increase in the gearing ratio resulted primarily due to increase in borrowings.

30. RECOGNIZED FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value hierarchy

Certain financial assets and financial liabilities are not measured at fair value if the carrying amounts
are a reasonable approximation of fair value. Due to the short-term nature, carrying amounts of
certain financial assets and financial liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair value. For
the majority of the non-current receivables, the fair values are also not significantly different to their
carrying amounts. Judgements and estimates are made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are recognized and measured at fair value in these financial statements. To provide
an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has
dassified its financial instruments into following three levels. However as at the reporting date, the
Company has no such type of financial instruments which are required to be grouped into these
levels. These levels are explained as under:

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded
derivatives, trading and equity securities) is based on quoted market prices at the end of the
reporting period. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Company is the
current bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using valuation technigues which maximize the use of
observable market data and rely as litte as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is induded in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities.
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r

40.

(i)

RECOGNIZED FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS - NON FINANCIAL ASSETS

Fair value hierarchy

The judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the non-financial assets that
are recognized and measured at fair value in the financial statements. To provide an indication about
the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its non-financial
assets into the following three levels.

| Levell | Level2 | Level3 | Total |
--------------- RUPEES IN THOUSAND-=-=======cuuxx.

At 30 June 2019

Freehold land - 91,601 - 91,601
Buildings on freehold land - 162,630 - 162,630
Plant and machinery - 488,102 - 488,102
Electric installations / appliances - 15,500 - 15,500
Generators - 46,000 - 46,000
Laboratory equipment - 7,999 - 7,999
Investment properties - 115,554 - 115,554
Total non-financial assets - 927,386 - 927,386
At 30 June 2018

Freehold land - 88,165 - 88,165
Buildings on freehold land - 148,324 - 148,324
Plant and machinery - 495,708 - 495,708
Electric installations / appliances - 14,913 - 14,913
Generators - 45,903 - 45,903
Laboratory equipment - 7,770 - 7,770
Investment properties - 120,381 - 120,381
Total non-financial assets - 921,164 - 921,164

The Company's policy is to recognize transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as
at the end of the reporting period.

There were no transfer between level 1 and 2 for recurring fair value measurements during the year.
Further, there was no transfer in and out of level 3 measurements.

Valuation techniques used to determine level 2 fair values

The Company obtains independent valuations for its investment properties at least annually and for
its freehold land, buildings thereon, plant and machinery, electric installations / appliances,
generators and laboratory equipment (classified as property, plant and equipment) at least after every
three years. the management updates the assessment of the fair value of each property taking into
account the most recent independent valuations. The management determines property's value within
a range of reasonable fair value estimates. The best evidence of fair value of freehold land is current
prices in an active market for similar lands. The best evidence of fair value of buildings is to calculate
fair depreciated market value by applying an appropriate annual rate of depreciation on the new
construction / replacement value of the same buildings. The best evidence of fair value of plant and
machinery, electric installations / appliances, generators and laboratory equipment is to calculate fair
depreciated market value by applying an appropriate annual rate of depreciation on the value of new
plant and machinery, electric installations / appliances, generators and laboratory equipment of the
same specifications.

Valuation processes

The Company engages external, independent and qualified valuers to determine the fair value of the
Company’s investment properties at the end of every financial year and for freehold land, buildings
thereon, plant and machinery, electric installations [ appliances, generators and laboratory equipment
after at least every three years. The fair value of the investment properties, freehold land, buildings
thereon, plant and machinery, electric installations / appliances, generators and laboratory equipment
has been performed by Messrs Zafar Igbal and Company as at 29 June 2019.
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Changes in fair values are analyzed at each reporting date during the annual valuation discussion between the Chief
Financial Officer and the valuers. As part of this discussion the team presents a report that explains the reason for
the fair value movements.

41. DISCLOSURES BY COMPANY LISTED ON ISLAMIC INDEX

Description Note 2019 | 2018
P (RUPEES IN THOUSAND
Revenue earned from shariah compliant business 24 1,885,310 1,598,473

Shariah compliant bank deposits and bank balances

Bank balances 38.1 (b) 40,462 1,260

Profits earned or interest paid on any conventional loan / advance

Mark-up on short term borrowings 30 43,852 27,790
Interest / profit on investments 29 389 500
Mark-up paid on Islamic mode of financing 30 1,404 1,859

Loans [/ advances obtained as per Islamic mode

Advances from customers 10 2,438 22,318
Short term borrowings 11 26,619 48,503

There is no profit earned from shariah compliant bank balances as all the bank balances are in current accounts.
Moreover there is no dividend on any investment and no exchange gain earned. The relationship with shariah
compliant banks is related to bank accounts as given in Note 38.1 (b) along with short term borrowings with
AlBaraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited.

42. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Board of Directors of the Company has proposed a cash dividend for the year ended 30 June 2019 of Rupees
0.40 per share to all shareholders, at their meeting held on October 05, 2019. However, this event has been
considered as non-adjusting event under IAS 10 'Events after the Reporting Period' and has nat been recognized in
these finandal statements.

43. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE
These financial statements were authorized for issue on October 05, 2019 by the Board of Directors of the Company.
44. CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Caorresponding figures have been re-arranged, wherever necessary for the purpose of comparison. However, no
significant re-arrangements have been made.

45. GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of Rupees unless otherwise stated.

[

IZAD AMER ANNS AMER Muhaminad Saqib Ehsan
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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1.1 Name of the Company ] AN TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

FORM 34
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017
(Section 227(2)(f))
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
|
| 30-06-2019 |

2.1. Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders as at

----—--Shareholdings

2.2 No. of Shareholders From To Total Shares Held
645 1 100 19,368
248 101 500 57,711
43 501 1.000 38,150
72 1,001 5,000 192 885
18 5,001 10,000 117,961
T 10,001 15,000 93,848
T 15,001 20,000 126,619
4 20,001 25,000 95,000
2 25,001 30,000 60,000
1 40,001 45,000 40,587
1 55,001 60,000 57,500
1 70,001 75,000 72,500
1 75,001 80,000 78,225
2 85,001 90.000 179,000
1 95,001 100,000 100,000
1 260,001 265,000 264,125
1 430,001 435,000 431,446
1 740,001 745,000 742 697
1 885,001 890,000 890,000
1 1,180,001 1,185,000 1,184 193
1 1,475,001 1,480,000 1,475 611
1 1,640,001 1.645,000 1,640,170
1 1,700,001 1,705,000 1,702 404
1,068 9,660,000
2.3 Categories of shareholders Share held Percentage
2.3.1 Directors, Chief Executive Officers, 7,918,940 81.9766
and their spouse and minor children
2.3.2 Associated Companies, 0 0.0000
undertakings and related
parties. (Parent Company)
2.3.3 NIT and ICP 449,346 4.6516
2.3.4 Banks Development 559 0.0058
Financial Institutions, Non
Banking Financial Institutions.
2.3.5 Insurance Companies 0 0.0000
2.3.6 Modarabas and Mutual 6,600 0.0683
Funds
2.3.7 Share holders holding 10% 7,007,075 72.5370
or more
2.3.8 General Public
a. Local 1,190.614 12.3252
b. Foreign 172 0.0018
2.3.9 Others (o be specified)
1- Joint Stock Companies 40,233 0.4165
2- Investment Companies 200 0.0021
3- Pension Funds 40,587 0.4202
4- Others 12,749 0.1320

e | 62
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AN TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
Catagories of Shareholding required under Code of Corporate Governance (CCG)
As on June 30, 2019

. No. of Shares
Sr. No. Name Held Percentage
Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties (Name Wise Detail): - 0.0000
Mutual Funds (Name Wise Detail)
1 GOLDEN ARROW SELECTED STOCKS FUND LIMITED (CDC) 6,500 0.0673
Directors and their Spouse and Minor Children (Name Wise Detail):
1 MRS. ZAREEN AKHTAR 17,409 0.1802
2 MR. AIZAD AMER 1,740,170 18.0142
3 MRS. NAZIMA AMER 1,926,890 19.9471
4 MR. ANNS AMER 1,475,611 15.2755
8 KHAWAJA AMER KHURSHID 1,864,404 19.3002
6 MRS. YUSRA AMER 890,000 92133
7 MR. ABDUL RAUF 3,456 0.0358
8 SYED KHALID ALI 1,000 0.0104
Executives: - 0.0000
Public Sector Companies & Corporations: - 0.0000
Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non Banking Finance 41,246 04270

Companies, Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds:

Shareholders holding five percent or more voting intrest in the listed company (Name Wise Detail)

S. No. Name Holding % AGE
1 MRS. NAZIMA AMER 1,926,890 19.9471
2) KHAWAJA AMER KHURSHID 1,864,404 19.3002
3 MR. AIZAD AMER 1,740,170 18.0142
4 MR. ANNS AMER 1,475,611 15.2755
5 MISS YUSRA AMER 890,000 92133

All trades in the shares of the listed company, carried out by its Directors, Executives and their
spouses and minor children shall also be disclosed:

S. No. Name Sale Purchase
1 KHAW AJA AMER KHURSHID (CDC) - 72,500
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AN TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

[/We

PROXY FORM

of

being member(s) of

AN TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED holding
No./CDC A/c No. (for members who have shares in CDS)

ordinary shares as per Registered Folio

hereby appoint Mr./Mrs./Miss of (full
address) or failing him/her
Mr./Mrs./Miss of (full
address) (being

member of the Company) as my/our Proxy to attend, act and vote for me/us and on my/our
behalf at the 38" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on October 28, 2019
at 10:00 a.m. at its Registered Office 35 K.M. Sheikhupura Road, Faisalabad and/or any
adjournment thereof.

As witness my/our hand seal this day of 2019
Signed by in the
presence of

Signatures on
Rs.5/-

Revenue Stamps

(Signature must agree with the specimen
signatures registered with the Company)
Notes:

1. This proxy form duly completed and signed, must be received at the Registered Office
of the Company or its Share Registrar M/S Corplink (Pvt.) Limited, Wings Arcade, 01-K
Commercial, Model Town, Lahore not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the
meeting.

2. No person shall act as proxy unless he/she himself/herself is a member of the
Company, except that a Corporation may appoint a person who is not a member.

3. If a member appoints more than one proxy and more than one instruments of proxy are
deposited by a member with the Company, all such instruments of proxy shall be
rendered invalid.

4. Any individual Beneficial Owner of the Central Depository Company, entitled to vote at
this meeting must bring his / her National Identity Card with him/her to prove his/her
identity, and in case of proxy, must enclose an attested copy of his / her National
|dentity Card. Representatives of Corporate members should bring the usual
documents required for such purpose.
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